

Child Welfare: The Court Improvement Program

-name redacted-Specialist in Social Policy

April 6, 2006

Congressional Research Service

7-.... www.crs.gov RL33350

Summary

The Court Improvement Program (CIP) was enacted in 1993 (P.L. 103-66) to provide funds to eligible state highest courts to assess and make improvements to their handling of child welfare proceedings. Funding for the CIP was provided via a statutory set-aside from funding provided to state child welfare agencies for family preservation and family support services to children and families (Title IV-B, Subpart 2 of the Social Security Act). That set-aside, which totals \$12.9 million for FY2006, will expire with FY2006. The Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (P.L. 109-171) requires and encourages collaboration between courts and public child welfare agencies, authorizes two new grants under the Court Improvement Program, and provides a total of \$100 million for those grants. This mandatory funding is available for courts to improve their training of judges, legal personnel, and attorneys handling child abuse and neglect cases (\$10 million for each of FY2006-FY2010), and to assist courts in improving the timeliness of their efforts on behalf of children in foster care (\$10 million for each of FY2006-FY2010).

Federal child welfare policy has long assumed that courts and child welfare agencies must work in tandem to make timely decisions regarding the safety, permanency, and well-being of children. At the same time, almost all federal child welfare-related funding and requirements have applied to state child welfare agencies. Over the course of several decades, Congress has periodically authorized funds to courts to improve their efforts on behalf of children, and a May 2004 report from the Pew Commission on Children in Foster Care, which made numerous recommendations to improve court performance on children's behalf, renewed attention to this issue. The changes made by the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (P.L. 109-171) were a part of the recommendations made by the Pew Commission and were also included in legislation introduced in the Senate (S. 1679—Senators DeWine and Rockefeller) and the House (H.R. 3758—Representative Schiff).

For various reasons, additional legislative activity related to the Court Improvement Program may occur in the 109th Congress (likely as a part of the expected reauthorization debate for the child welfare program authorized under Title IV-B, Subpart 2 of the Social Security Act, now called the Promoting Safe and Stable Families (PSSF) program). Funding for the original CIP grant program (for improving and assessing court handling of child welfare proceedings) is statutorily reserved from total PSSF funding, and that funding is set to expire with FY2006. Congress may consider whether this funding set-aside for CIP should be extended, and if so, whether the authorization language for this grant meets the current program needs. In addition, Congress may want to review the adequacy of the authorizing language provided for the two new grant programs (related to timely decisions on behalf of children and training judges and other court/legal personnel), which was added during conference negotiations on the Deficit Reduction Act (P.L. 109-171) and was not previously debated by Congress. Third, while the new grant programs, and several other changes made by P.L. 109-171 meet a number of court-related recommendations provided by the Pew Commission on Children in Foster Care, there are additional court-related child welfare issues that Congress may choose to address.

This report will be updated as needed.

Contents

Introduction	l
Legislative History	1
Current Program Structure	
Applications	
Formula and Entitlement	
Program Funding	3
Context for Recent Changes to the Court Improvement Program	
Legislative History of Court Role in Federal Child Welfare Policy	6
Other Court-related Child Welfare Funding	8
Victims of Child Abuse Act	8
Strengthening Abuse and Neglect Courts Act	
Tables	
Table 1. Funding Authority and Appropriations for the Court Improvement Program,	
FY1995-FY2006	3
Table 2. Funds Authorized and Appropriated for the Court Improvement Program,	4
FY2006-FY2010	4
Contacts	
Author Contact Information	9

Introduction

The Court Improvement Program (CIP) (Section 438 of the Social Security Act), first authorized in 1993 (P.L. 103-66), provides grants to highest state courts intended to improve their handling of child welfare cases. As authorized for FY2006, these grants are for three purposes: to assess handling of child abuse and neglect cases and make needed improvements (FY2006 funding—\$12.9 million); to train judges, legal personnel, and attorneys in handling of child welfare cases (FY2006 funding—\$10 million); and to improve timeliness of decisions regarding safety, permanence, and well-being of children (FY2006 funding—\$10 million).

The latter two grants were first authorized and funded by the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (P.L. 109-171), which authorized and funded them through FY2010. Funding under the CIP grant for assessing and improving court handling of child welfare cases was first made available in FY1995, and is provided as a set-aside from appropriations made for services to children and families under Title IV-B, Subpart 2 of the Social Security Act (now called the Promoting Safe and Stable Families program); that funding is set to expire with FY2006.

The 109th Congress may consider whether to extend funding for this initial CIP grant, whether to add to the relatively limited instructions provided in the Deficit Reduction Act regarding purposes of the two newest grants, and whether additional court-related measures intended to improve court performance on behalf of children in child abuse and neglect cases are needed.

Legislative History

As first enacted in 1993 (P.L. 103-66), Court Improvement Program grants were made to permit state highest courts to

- assess their "role, responsibilities, and effectiveness" in carrying out required court processes in federal and state child welfare law (including regarding determinations about foster care placement, termination of parental rights, and placement for adoption or another permanent living arrangement), and
- implement changes deemed necessary from that assessment.

Funding was provided (as a set-aside from Title IV-B, Subpart 2) at \$5 million for FY1995 and \$10 million for each of FY1996-FY1998. Eligible state highest courts with an approved application for a CIP grant were entitled to receive \$75,000 (rising to \$85,000 in FY1996 and each subsequent year), plus a share of the remaining CIP set-aside based on their state's relative share of the population under age 21.²

_

¹ The Court Improvement Program authority was initially provided in independent statutory language but was moved to Section 438 of the Social Security Act by P.L. 107-133 (enacted in January 2002).

² Title IV-B, Subpart 2 of the Social Security Act was created in 1993 to authorize grants to state child welfare agencies for family support and family preservation services. This program was expanded and renamed the Promoting Safe and Stable Families in 1997 by the Adoption and Safe Families Act (ASFA, P.L. 105-189), and in 2001 Congress acted to extend the program through FY2006 (P.L. 107-133).

The Adoption and Safe Families Act (ASFA, P.L. 105-89) continued the set-aside funding for the Court Improvement Program at \$10 million annually through FY2001. The Promoting Safe and Stable Families Amendments of 2001 (P.L. 107-133) extended CIP through FY2006, made clear that the funds could be used to implement improvements made necessary by ASFA, as well as any made necessary by a "corrective action plan" required of a state child welfare agency following a federal Child and Family Services Review (CFSR). Finally, that law authorized up to \$16.6 million in annual set-aside funding from what is now called the Promoting Safe and Stable Families (PSSF) program. (This amount is the sum of the previous \$10 million set-aside from the mandatory PSSF program funding plus 3.3% of any funds appropriated under the new \$200 million annual PSSF discretionary funding authorization. Congress has never provided the full discretionary funding authorized for the PSSF, and the discretionary set-aside for the CIP has never been more than \$3.3 million.) See **Table 1** for program funding history.

The Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (P.L. 109-171) expanded the CIP and provided new, independently appropriated funds for the program. The law appropriates \$20 million in each of FY2006-FY2010 (a total of \$100 million over five years) for two new kinds of CIP grants:

- to ensure that the safety, permanence, and well-being needs of children are met in a timely and complete manner, and
- to provide for the training of judges, attorneys and other legal personnel in child welfare cases.

These grants are in addition to the previously authorized CIP grant (currently authorized through FY2006 and funded via a set-aside from the Promoting Safe and Stable Families program).

Current Program Structure

In FY2006, state highest courts may apply for one or more of the three grants now authorized under the Court Improvement Program. Courts must submit a separate application for each grant and must meet certain requirements.

Applications

P.L. 109-171 provides that an application for any of the three grant programs must demonstrate "meaningful and ongoing collaboration" between the courts, the state child welfare agency (or any other agency under contract with the state child welfare agency to administer child welfare programs authorized under the Social Security Act), and Indian tribes (where applicable).³ In an application for funds related to the newly authorized grant for improving timely and complete actions on behalf of children, a state highest court must include a description of how it and the child welfare agencies (on the local and state levels) jointly plan for the collection and sharing of all relevant data and information. In an application for training funds under the CIP, a state highest court must demonstrate that at least part of the grant will be used for cross-training

Review).

³ At the same time, P.L. 109-171 amended the state plan requirements for Child Welfare Services (Title IV-B, Subpart 1 of the Social Security Act) so that any state seeking these funds must be able to demonstrate "substantial, ongoing, and meaningful collaboration" with state courts in developing and implementing that state plan, as well as the state plans for the Promoting Safe and Stable Families program (Title IV-B, Subpart 2), Adoption and Foster Care Assistance (Title IV-E), and any program improvement plan (required due to a federal Child and Family Services

initiatives jointly planned and carried out with the state child welfare agency (or an agency under contract with the state agency). Finally, as was previously required for receipt of CIP funds, in each of the grant applications, a state highest court would need to supply any additional information or assurances that the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) might require.

Formula and Entitlement

P.L. 109-171 followed the formula established in prior law for the CIP grant: each state highest court with an approved application is entitled to receive a minimum grant of \$85,000 and a portion of any of the remaining set-aside funds that is equal to its state's share of individuals under 21 years of age (compared to all states with an approved application for the grant). This same formula is applied to each of the new grant programs. Thus, if a state highest court successfully applies for all three grants, it will receive three minimum allotments of \$85,000 (total of \$255,000) and a share of the remaining funds for each grant program based on the size of its state's population under 21 years of age (relative to all states whose highest court has an approved application for each of the grants).

Program Funding

Table 1 shows total funds authorized and appropriated for the Court Improvement Program for FY1995 (first year of funding authority) through FY2006. **Table 2** shows funds authorized and appropriated for the Court Improvement Program for FY2006-FY2010 (by the grant purpose). For FY1995 to FY2005 all of the funding authority and funds appropriated were for a single grant purpose and were provided as a set-aside of funds out of the appropriation for the Promoting Safe an Stable Families program (Title IV-B, Subpart 2 of the Social Security Act). Unless Congress acts to extend funding authority for the PSSF and to continue the set-aside for the CIP, funding authority will expire with FY2006. However in the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (P.L. 109-171), Congress separately and independently appropriated a total of \$100 million (\$20 million for each of fiscal years FY2006-FY2010) for two separate grant purposes under the Court Improvement Program.

Table 1. Funding Authority and Appropriations for the Court Improvement Program, FY1995-FY2006

Fiscal year	Funds authorized	Funds appropriated	
1995	\$5 million	lion \$5 million	
1996	\$10 million \$10 million		
1997	\$10 million \$10 million		
1998	\$10 million \$10 million		
1999	\$10 million	\$10 million	
2000	\$10 million	\$10 million	
2001	\$10 million	\$10 million	
2002	\$16.6 million	.6 million \$12.3 million	
2003	\$16.6 million	million \$13.3 million	

Fiscal year	Funds authorized	Funds appropriated	
2004	\$16.6 million	\$13.3 million	
2005	\$16.6 million	\$13.3 million	
2006	\$36.6 million	\$32.9 million	

Source: Table prepared by the Congressional Research Service (CRS).

Table 2. Funds Authorized and Appropriated for the Court Improvement Program, FY2006-FY2010

(in millions of dollars)

	Purpose of grant to state highest court					
Assess and make needed improvements to court handling of child abuse and neglect cases		Train judges, legal personnel and attorneys in handling of child welfare cases		Ensure safety, permanence, and well-being needs of children are met in a timely and complete manner		
FY	authorized	appropriated	authorized	appropriated	authorized	appropriated
2006	\$16.6	\$12.9	\$10.0	\$10.0	\$10.0	\$10.0
2007	not authorized		10.0	10.0	10.0	10.0
2008	not authorized		10.0	10.0	10.0	10.0
2009	not authorized		10.0	10.0	10.0	10.0
2010	not authorized		10.0	10.0	10.0	10.0

Source: Table prepared by the Congressional Research Service (CRS).

Context for Recent Changes to the Court Improvement Program

In May 2004, after a little more than one year of study and deliberation, the Pew Commission on Children in Foster Care released its recommendations related to federal financing of child welfare services and improving court oversight of child welfare proceedings.⁴ The court-related suggestions made by the Commission were largely incorporated in legislation introduced earlier in the 109th Congress: in the Senate (S. 1679 by Senators DeWine and Rockefeller) and in the House (H.R. 3758 by Representative Schiff) and many of the recommendations were incorporated in the Deficit Reduction Act.

The Commission noted that in order for states to ensure "children's rights to safety, permanence and well-being are met in a timely and complete manner" courts must be able to track children's progress, identify which children need attention and identify sources of delay in court proceedings. To address this issue they recommended states adopt performance measures⁵ for

_

⁴ Pew Commission on Children in Foster Care. *Fostering the Future: Safety, Permanence and Well-Being for Children in Foster Care,* May 2004. Available online at http://pewfostercare.org/research/docs/FinalReport.pdf.

⁵ The specific performance measures recommended by the Commission were those developed by the American Bar Association's Center on Children and the Law, the National Center for State Courts, and the National Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges, *Building a Better Court: Measuring and Improving Court Performance and Judicial Workload in Child Abuse and Neglect Cases*, Los Altos, CA: The David and Lucile Packard Foundation, 2004. Available online at http://www.ncsconline.org/WC/Publications/Res_CtPerS_TCPS_PackGde4-04Pub.pdf.

their activities on behalf of children, that judges and judicial leadership use performance data collected to ensure accountability and inform decisions about resource allocation and finally, that Congress appropriate \$10 million in the first years (additional sums as necessary) to help states build the capacity to track and analyze their caseload.

Second, the Commission urged that child welfare agencies and courts be required to demonstrate effective collaboration on behalf of children. The commission recommended that HHS require collaboration as part of developing a variety of service and program improvement plans and in collecting and sharing relevant data between the child welfare agencies and courts. Further, it asked that Congress appropriate \$10 million to train court personnel and that a portion of this funding should be designated for joint training of court personnel and child welfare agency staff, and others involved in protecting and caring for children. It also called on HHS to require states to establish broad-based state commissions on children in foster care that would be led by the state's child welfare agency director and the state chief justice.

Substantial parts of these first two sets of recommendations are included in the Deficit Reduction Act. For instance, while state highest courts are not required to develop performance measures, they may apply for their allotment of an annual \$10 million fund (for each of FY2006-FY2010) intended to help improve their timely and complete decision making on behalf of children. State highest courts may also apply for funds (out of a separate \$10 million grant for each of FY2006-FY2010) to improve training of court personnel. As noted earlier, to receive a CIP grant for any purpose, courts must be able to demonstrate "meaningful and ongoing collaboration" between themselves and child welfare agencies. In addition, to receive CIP funding to improve timely decision-making on behalf of children, courts must describe how they will collaborate with child welfare agencies to collect and share relevant data; finally, to receive training funds courts must assure that a part of the grant will be used to provide cross-training of court personnel and child welfare agencies (as a condition of certain federal funding) to involve the courts in information gathering, program planning and program improvement efforts.⁶

The Pew Commission proposed a third set of recommendations intended to ensure that children's best interests are represented and that the voices of children and their parents are heard in dependency court proceedings. These provisions are not included in the Deficit Reduction Act. They include an additional \$5 million in federal funds to expand the Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) program; adoption of standards of practice, preparation, education, and compensation for attorneys practicing child dependency law; and funds for loan forgiveness or other demonstration programs intended to attract and retain dependency court attorneys. Finally the commission urged law schools, bar associations and law firms to help build the pool of qualified attorneys available to practice in dependency courts.

⁶ HHS has generally supported this call for collaboration and, in June 2005, the Department issued policy guidance clarifying its expectation for court involvement in the child welfare agency Child and Family Services Review process (including the development of any necessary Program Improvement Plan). U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, ACYF-CB-IM-05-05, "Court Involvement in the Child and Family Services Review, June 24, 2005.

⁷ As passed by the House in late March (H.R. 609) the College Access and Opportunity Act of 2006 would authorize the Department of Education to repay up to \$5,000 in student loan debt if an individual has worked full-time for five years in one of several "areas of national need." These are defined to include "child welfare workers" (who have a degree in social work or a "related field with a focus on serving children and families" and who are employed in private or public child welfare services). It is not clear that this definition would be understood to include lawyers that handle child welfare cases. The loan forgiveness program would be authorized to receive such sums as necessary for FY2007-FY2012.

There are a number of proposals in Congress that would fund a student loan forgiveness program for child welfare attorneys (S. 1431, Senator DeWine; S. 1679, Senators DeWine and Rockefeller; and H.R. 3758, Representative Schiff), but none of these have been acted on. In addition Congress recently reauthorized the CASA program (P.L. 109-162) but did not raise the program funding authorization (nor its actual funding) above the \$12 million annually authorized in prior law.⁸

With regard to ensuring sound standards of practice and qualified attorneys acting on behalf of children in abuse and neglect courts, the National Association for Counsel of Children (using grant money provided by HHS, September 2002-September 2005) has developed a national certification for child welfare lawyers. The American Bar Association (ABA) has granted approval of this certification process and of the National Association for Counsel of Children as a certifying agency. A certification exam was piloted in 2005 and attorneys in a limited number of states may now apply for this certification. (National dissemination of the certification is also planned.) Finally, S. 1679, as introduced in July 2005, would require states to "develop and encourage the implementation of practice standards for all attorneys representing the State or local agency administering the program under this part [Title IV-E of the Social Security Act], including standards regarding the interaction of such attorneys with other attorneys who practice before an abuse and neglect court."

The fourth and last set of recommendations are directed to chief justices and state court leadership and urge them to act as champions of children in their court systems and leaders of reform. ¹⁰

Legislative History of Court Role in Federal Child Welfare Policy

Court Improvement Program funds recognize the integral role courts must play if states are to achieve the federal goals of keeping children safe and finding them permanent homes. State laws—related to determinations of safety and the need to remove a child from the home (e.g. what is child abuse and neglect), termination of parental rights, and placement for adoption—are key operating contexts for the state child welfare agency; state courts implement (or ratify agency decisions) based on these state laws. Federal child welfare policy both affects these state laws and assumes active involvement of the court with child welfare agencies in achieving the primary goals of safety, permanence and well-being for children. However, federal child welfare funding is to a very large extent directed toward state child welfare agencies and these agencies are held accountable for adhering to and achieving a range of court-related procedures and outcomes.

⁸ For more information on CASA, see CRS Report RL32976, *Child Welfare: Programs Authorized by the Victims of Child Abuse Act of 1990*, by (name redacted).

⁹ For more information see the National Association of Counsel for Children http://www.naccchildlaw.org/training/certification.html and U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, *Second Biennial Report to the Congress on Evaluation, Research and Technical Assistance Activities Supported by the Promoting Safe and Stable Families Program*, 2005, pp. 24-25.

Ocurt organization and related changes recommended include embedding oversight responsibility and assistance for dependency courts within the Administrative Office for the Courts; organizing courts so that dependency cases are heard in dedicated courts or departments (rather than in departments with jurisdiction over multiple issues); creation of resource, workload and training standards for dependency courts, judges and attorneys, along with standards of practice for dependency judges and codes of judicial conduct that support the practices of problem-solving courts; and, finally, state court procedures that enable and encourage judges who have demonstrated competence in the dependency courts to build careers on the dependency bench.

Courts have played an explicit role in *federal* child welfare policy at least since 1961, when the first federally authorized reimbursement of state foster care costs was conditioned, in part, on a court finding that remaining in the home would be "contrary to the welfare" of the child (P.L. 97-31). The Adoption and Child Welfare Assistance Act of 1980 (P.L. 96-272), which largely established the framework for current federal child welfare policies and programs, extended and expanded the significance of courts in federal child welfare policy. In addition to "contrary to the welfare" findings, federal foster care funding to state child welfare agencies was further conditioned on a court finding that "reasonable efforts" had been made both to preserve a child's family (in order to prevent removal), and, once a child had been removed, that reasonable efforts had been made to enable the child and his/her family to be reunited.

Further, to receive full foster care and child welfare funding, P.L. 96-272 required state child welfare agencies to establish a case review system for children in foster care that ensured each foster child a court hearing within 18 months of his/her entry into foster care and "periodically" thereafter. At each of these "dispositional" hearings, P.L. 96-272 stated that the court was to consider the "future status of the child (including, but not limited to, whether the child should be returned to the parent, should be continued in foster care for a specified period, should be placed for adoption, or should, (because of the child's special needs or circumstances) be continued in foster care on a permanent or long-term basis)."

In 1997 the Adoption and Safe Families Act (ASFA. P.L. 105-89) revised federal child welfare policy in ways that give special urgency to timeliness of court actions in child welfare proceedings and that also emphasize safety as a key determining factor in all of its decisions. ASFA changed the name of the "dispositional hearing" to a "permanency hearing," insisted that such a hearing must be held no later than 12 months after a child enters foster care (and every 12 months thereafter). At this hearing the court must determine the plan for the child's permanent placement (reunification, adoption, legal guardianship, placement with a "fit and willing" relative or, if none of these plans would be in the child's best interest, placement in "another planned permanent living arrangement").

In keeping with its emphasis on safety, ASFA amended the statute to provide that "reasonable efforts" to preserve or reunite a family are not needed in cases where a child is determined (under state law) to be an abandoned infant, been subjected to state-defined "aggravated circumstances" or where the child's parent has committed certain, specified egregious crimes (e.g., murder of another of the parent's children). At the same time, it required the child welfare agency to initiate court proceedings necessary to terminate the parental rights of any such abandoned infant or child whose parent had committed a specified egregious crime. Further state agencies were required to initiate the same termination of parental rights proceedings on behalf of any child who has been in foster care for the last 15 out of 22 months (unless specified situations are met, or a child welfare agency can document to a court why this would not be in a child's best interest). Like the earlier court-related requirements, all of the new ASFA requirements were also made as conditions of federal funding to child welfare agencies.

¹¹ These hearings and determinations may also be done by "an administrative body" but only if it was "appointed or approved by the court."

Other Court-related Child Welfare Funding

At various times and somewhat in sync with this legislative history, Congress has acted to authorize projects intended to improve court handling of child welfare cases. However, funding to support these projects has not always been appropriated and, even before the recent amendments and expanded program funding provided by the Deficit Reduction Act (P.L. 109-171), the Court Improvement Program represented the largest single source of funding and program authority related to court performance in child welfare proceedings.

Victims of Child Abuse Act

Citing both an increase in abuse and neglect cases attributed to drug-related maltreatment of children and the new requirements placed on juvenile and family courts by the Adoption Assistance and Child Welfare Act of 1980 (P.L. 96-272), the Victims of Child Abuse Act of 1990 (Title II, P.L. 101-647) required the Department of Justice's Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP) to "provide expanded technical assistance and training to judicial personnel and attorneys ... to improve the judicial system's handling of child abuse and neglect cases with specific emphasis on the role of the courts in addressing reasonable efforts that can safely avoid unnecessary and unnecessarily prolonged foster care placement." The statute authorized grants for these purposes to be made to 1) national organizations to develop model technical assistance and training programs; and 2) juvenile and family courts.

Congress has never appropriated separate funds under this authority for grants to state courts. However funding to develop model technical assistance and training programs has been provided to the National Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges in every year beginning with FY1992. Over that time funding has risen gradually from \$500,000 to just over \$2 million. The National Council has primarily used this funding to develop its Model Courts Initiative, through which it provides training, technical assistance and other resources intended to permit courts to test new ways to continually improve their handling of child welfare cases. There are some 31 Model Courts (located in 23 states and the District of Columbia), currently a part of this initiative, and with this funding the National Council has developed publications, and provides technical assistance and training programs to improve handling of child abuse and neglect cases. The courts are considered to the courts of the cou

Strengthening Abuse and Neglect Courts Act

In 2000, the Strengthening Abuse and Neglect Courts Act (SANCA, P.L. 106-314) cited the increased demands on courts expected to flow from ASFA when it authorized several grant programs intended to improve the efficiency with which courts handled child abuse and neglect related cases. These included—

_

¹² Among the requirements of P.L. 96-272 that affected courts, and which were noted by the Victims of Child Abuse Act, were 1) the determination of whether a child welfare agency has made reasonable efforts to prevent foster care placement; 2) approval of voluntary foster care placements; and 3) provision of procedural safeguards for parents when their parent-child relationship is affected.

¹³ For additional information, see CRS Report RL32976, *Child Welfare: Programs Authorized by the Victims of Child Abuse Act of 1990*, by (name redacted).

¹⁴ For more about the Model Courts Initiative see the National Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges website http://www.ncjfcj.org/content/blogcategory/117/156/.

- a \$10 million authorization for FY2001 and FY2002 for grants to state and local courts to reduce backlogs in handling of child abuse and neglect related cases (to be administered by the Department of Justice in consultation with HHS); and
- \$10 million for FY2001 through FY2005 for grants to state and local courts to develop, implement or enhance computer data collection and case-tracking systems (to be administered by the Department of Justice).

Congress made one appropriation of funds (\$2 million in FY2002) to support the purposes of SANCA. (Funding authority for SANCA has since expired.) Although the appropriation did not specify which grant program was to be funded, the Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention awarded grants to local or state courts in six states (Colorado, Georgia, Idaho, Florida, New Jersey and Virginia) to develop, improve or enhance their automated case tracking grant program. ¹⁵

Author Contact Information

(name redacted)
Specialist in Social Policy
[redacted]@crs.loc.gov, 7-....

-

¹⁵ For more about this project see this page on the National Child Welfare Resource Center on Legal and Judicial Issues website http://www.abanet.org/child/sanca.html.

EveryCRSReport.com

The Congressional Research Service (CRS) is a federal legislative branch agency, housed inside the Library of Congress, charged with providing the United States Congress non-partisan advice on issues that may come before Congress.

EveryCRSReport.com republishes CRS reports that are available to all Congressional staff. The reports are not classified, and Members of Congress routinely make individual reports available to the public.

Prior to our republication, we redacted names, phone numbers and email addresses of analysts who produced the reports. We also added this page to the report. We have not intentionally made any other changes to any report published on EveryCRSReport.com.

CRS reports, as a work of the United States government, are not subject to copyright protection in the United States. Any CRS report may be reproduced and distributed in its entirety without permission from CRS. However, as a CRS report may include copyrighted images or material from a third party, you may need to obtain permission of the copyright holder if you wish to copy or otherwise use copyrighted material.

Information in a CRS report should not be relied upon for purposes other than public understanding of information that has been provided by CRS to members of Congress in connection with CRS' institutional role.

EveryCRSReport.com is not a government website and is not affiliated with CRS. We do not claim copyright on any CRS report we have republished.